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CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE

Dear Shareholders, e

It gives me immense pleasure to welcome you all on behalf of the esteemed members of the
Board to the First (01%t) Annual General Meeting (AGM) of Ircon Haridwar Bypass Limited
(IrconHBL). The Directors’ Report and the Audited Financial Statements for the period from
13" January, 2022 to 315t March, 2023, are already with you and with your kind permission, |
take them as read. | would like to express my sincere gratitude for making it convenient for
attending the AGM.

Ircon International Limited (IRCON”) has been awarded the work of Upgradation and Four
Laning of Haridwar Bypass Package-1 From Km.0+000 (Km 188+100 of NH-58) to Km.
15+100 (km 5+100 of NH 74) (‘the Project’) in the State of Uttarakhand on Hybrid Annuity
Basis (HAM) by National Highway Authority of India (NHAI). In terms of condition stipulated in
Letter of Award issued by NHAI, IRCON has incorporated your Company as its wholly-owned
subsidiary and a Special Purpose Vehicle for execution of the Project.

| would like to place before you, few highlights of IrconHBL.

IrconHBL has signed Concession Agreement with NHAI on 08" March, 2022. The concession
period of the Project comprises of construction period 730 days from the appointed date and
operation period of 15 years commencing from Commercial Operation Date (COD).

As per Concession Agreement the Bid Project Cost is Rs.861 crore Plus GST (excluding
escalation). The 40% of the project bid cost shall be reimbursed by NHAI during construction
phase and balance 60% will be receivable after construction in the form of Annuity. The
company will finance the cost of project by way of debt of Rs.447.61 crore & equity of
Rs.111.90 crore. In respect of debt, State Bank of India has sanctioned the term loan of
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Rs.447.61 crore. As on date SBI has disbursed the term loan of Rs.5.61 crore and total equity
of Rs.82.42 crore has been infused by Ircon international Ltd.

IRCON has been appointed as EPC Contractor for execution of the project work including
O&M for five (05) years at EPC price of Rs.784.58 plus applicable GST. Presently
construction activities at project has started from the appointed date of 31st October 2022 and
the works are progressing on the available front.

Compliances and Disclosures

Corporate Governance: Compliances and Disclosures under the Companies Act, 2013 and
rules thereunder are being fully adhered to by your Company. As per Office Memorandum
dated 10" July 2014 and 11" July 2019 issued by Department of Public Enterprises (DPE),
CPSEs constituted as Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) are exempted from compliance of the
DPE Guidelines on Corporate Governance for CPSEs. Hence, these are not applicable on
your company.

Memorandum of Understanding (MoU): Your Company has requested IRCON to grant it
exemption from compliance of Annual MoU exercise for the financial year 2022-23 and 2023-
24, in line with the Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) Guidelines issued by Department of
Public Enterprises (DPE) dated 10" March, 2023 and IRCON vide its letters dated 07%
November, 2022 and 06" February, 2023 has granted exemption to the Company from
compliance of Annual MOU exercise for the financial year 2022-23 and 2023-24 respectively.

Acknowledgements

I,on behalf of Board of Directors,express my heartfelt thanks for the valuable assistance and co-
operation extended to the Company by MoRTH, NHAI, Ircon International Limited, Auditors of
the Company and all those who have supported and guided us during the year. | express my
deep gratitude to employees for their dedication, intellect, hard work. And last, but not least, |
would like to thank my colleagues on the Board for their guidance and continuous support.

We look forward to your continued support in our journey ahead.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
of Ircon Haridwar Bypass Limited

Sd/-
Devendra Kumar Sharma
Chairman
DIN: 08556821
Date: 01.08.2023
Place: New Delhi
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
Dear Members,

Your Directors have immense pleasure in presenting the 01%' Annual Report of Ircon
Haridwar Bypass Limited (IrconHBL) together with the Audited Financial Statements of the
Company and Auditor's Report for the period from 13" January, 2022 (i.e. date of
incorporation) to 31t March, 2023.

BUSINESS OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS: PRESENT STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS:

IrconHBL, a wholly owned subsidiary of IRCON International Limited (IRCON) was
incorporated on 13" January, 2022 as a Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) with the main object
to carry the business of Upgradation and Four Laning of Haridwar Bypass Package-1 From
Km.0+000 (Km 188+100 of NH-58) to Km. 15+100 (km 5+100 of NH 74) (‘the Project’) in the
State of Uttarakhand on Hybrid Annuity Basis in accordance with the terms of Concession
Agreement with National Highways Authority of India (NHAI).

IrconHBL has entered into Concession Agreement with NHAI on 08" March, 2022. and the
concession period of the project comprises of construction period of 730 days from the
appointed date and operation period of 15 years commencing from Commercial Operation
Date (COD). IRCON has been appointed as EPC Contractor in terms of technical bid
submitted by IRCON to NHAI.

Further as per Concession Agreement the Bid Project Cost is Rs.861 crore Plus GST
(excluding escalation). The 40% of the project bid cost shall be reimbursed by NHAI during
construction phase and balance 60% will be receivable after construction in the form of
Annuity. The company will finance the cost of project by way of debt of Rs.447.61 crore &
equity of Rs.111.90 crore. In respect of debt, State Bank of India has sanctioned the term loan
of Rs.447.61 crore.

IRCON has been appointed as EPC Contractor for execution of the project work including
O&M for five (05) years at EPC price of Rs.784.58 plus applicable GST. Presently
construction activities at project has started from the appointed date of 31st October 2022
and the works are progressing on the available front.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS:

In pursuance of the provisions enumerated under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, the Company, has prepared its annual financial statements for the for the period
from 13" January, 2022 to 315t March, 2023 as per Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS).

Financial performance indicators for the period from 13" January, 2022 to 31t March
2023:

(Rs. in lakh)

SI. No. For the period from
Particulars 06.01.2022 to

31.03.2023

1. Equity Share Capital 5.00

Dlrectors’Report
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2. Other Equity (includes Reserves and Surplus) 8,294.00
3. Net Worth 8,299.00
4. Total Assets and Liabilities 8,761.81
5. Revenue from Operations 5,205.63
6. Other Income 103.92
7. Total Income (7) + (8) 5,309.55
8. Profit Before Tax 103.28
9. Profit After Tax 77.06
Earnings Per Equity Share (on face value of
10. Rs.1.0/- per share) 15412
() Basic 154.12
(i)  Diluted

*Note: The company is incorporated on 13" January, 2022 as wholly owned subsidiary of
Ircon International Limited and this is the first financial period of incorporation of the company
hence corresponding figure of previous period not provided.

DIVIDEND & APPROPRIATION TO RESERVE:

The Board of Directors does not recommend any dividend for the period under review.

As per the applicability of Ind AS, Reserves are reflected as Retained Earnings under the
head “Other Equity” in Financial Statements and your Company has a balance of Rs.77.06
Lakhs in Retained Earnings as on 315t March 2023.

SHARE CAPITAL/ DEMATERIALISATION:

Your Company was incorporated with an Authorized Share Capital and the Paid-up Share
Capital of the Company of Rs.5 Lakh comprising of 50,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each.
Ircon International Limited (IRCON) hold 100% of the paid-up share capital of IrconHBL.
Since, the incorporation of the Company i.e. 13" January, 2022, there was no change in the
share capital of your company.

As per Rule 9A of the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Amendment
Rules, 2019 dated 22" January, 2019, the Company being a wholly owned subsidiary (WoS)
is not required to get its securities in dematerialised form.

CASH FLOWS FROM THE PROJECT:

The Company is having a negative Cash Flows from operating activities of Rs.8,279.98 lakh
for the financial year ended 31 March 2023.

DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY/JOINT VENTURES/ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:

For the period under review, there was no Subsidiary/Joint Ventures/Associate Companies of
the Company.
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7. BOARD OF DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL:

Board of Directors:

CATEGORY & NAME OF THE DIRECTORS WITH DESIGNATION DURING THE PERIOD
FROM 13™ JANUARY, 2022 TO 315" MARCH 2023:

As per Articles of Association of the Company, the Board of the Company is appointed by the
holding company (IRCON).

As on 31t March, 2023, total number of Director is Three including Chairman, nominated by
IRCON. Details of Directors are as follows:

Category, Name & Designation Appointment or Cessation
(during the year, if any)
Mr. Devendra Kumar Sharma, 08556821 Appointed as Additional Part-
Chairman time Director and Chairman
on 10.10.2022
Mr. B. Mugunthan, Director 08517013 -
Mr. Masood Ahmad, Director 09008553 -

Mr. Ashok Kumar Goyal, Chairman (Part-time Nominee) of your Company, ceased to be the
Director and Chairman of your Company consequent to withdrawal of nomination by the
IRCON w.e.f. 10" October 2022. The Board placed on record its appreciation for valuable
contribution, guidance and support given by Mr. Ashok Kumar Goyal.

Mr. Devendra Kumar Sharma, Director, was nominated by IRCON as Chairman and
Additional Part-time Director of the Company w.e.f. 10" October 2022, who hold office upto
the date of the Annual General Meeting. The Company has received a notice under section
160 of the Companies Act, 2013 from Mr. Devendra Kumar Sharma giving his candidature for
appointment as Chairman and Director, liable to retire by rotation, in the Annual General
Meeting (AGM). His appointment as Director by Shareholders is included in the notice of the
AGM.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 152(6) the Companies Act, 2013, all Directors of
the Company shall be liable to retire by rotation at the Annual General Meeting of your
Company. Mr. B. Mugunthan and Mr. Masood Ahmad being the First Directors of the
Company appointed on the same date i.e. 13" January, 2022 and Mr. B. Mugunthan will retire
by rotation at the Annual General Meeting of your Company and being eligible, offers himself
for re-appointment. The Board of Directors recommends his reappointment as Director and
his brief resume is annexed to the Notice of the Annual General Meeting.

None of the Directors is disqualified from being appointed/re-appointed as Director.

Key Management Personnel (KMP):

As per Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, your Company is not required to appoint any
Key Management Personnel (KMP) during the period under review.
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8. Board Meetings:

During the period under review, the Board met nine (9) times on 06.01.2022, 17.01.2022
08.02.2022, 17.05.2022, 22.07.2022, 04.08.2022, 25.08.2022, 03.11.2022 and 31.01.2023.
The interval between two Board Meetings were within the period prescribed under the
Companies Act, 2013. The attendance detail of the Board Meetings is as follows:

14.01.2022 3 3
20.01.2022 3 3
21.02.2022 3 2
17.05.2022 3 3
22.07.2022 3 3
04.08.2022 3 3
09.09.2022 3 2
03.11.2022 3 3
31.01.2023 3 3

The table below shows attendance of the Board members at the Board Meetings held
during the period under review:

Name of Meeting Date Total Board  No. of % of

Directors Meeting Board Attend
entitled to Meetings ance
attend attended

during the during the
period from  period
oeth from 13t

MERIERIRERIRIE 205 s 200
AR IR IISARSE Vercn, 2023 | 31 viaren
S|3|38|38|5|8|8|4|5 ’ 2023
SJIRIN| SN 3 8(8| &
Mr. Ashok VIV |V |V |V I Y |* |- - 7 6 85.71
Kumar Goyal
Mr. B. VI IV | X |V |IVIVI VIV |V 9 8 88.89
Mugunthan
Mr. Masood VI VIV IV I VIV |>*X|Y |V 9 9 100
Ahmad
Mr.Devendra | - | - | - | - | -|-| - |Y |V 2 2 100
Kumar
Sharma
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INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS & BOARD COMMITTEES & CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
GUIDELINES ISSUED BY DPE:

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide its notification dated 05" July, 2017 exempted an
unlisted public company which are wholly-owned subsidiary from the requirement of
appointing Independent Directors on its Board and constitution of Audit Committee and
Nomination & Remuneration Committee (NRC).

IrconHBL, an unlisted public company and a wholly-owned subsidiary company of IRCON,
therefore, is not required to appoint any Independent Director on its Board and the declaration
by the Independent Directors is not applicable on the Company.

Further, in terms of Department of Public Enterprises (DPE)'s Office Memorandum (OM)
dated July 8-10, 2014, read with OM dated 11" July, 2019, CPSE’s constituted as Special
Purpose Vehicle (SPV) are exempted from compliance with the DPE Guidelines on Corporate
Governance for CPSEs. Hence, Corporate Governance Guidelines of DPE are not applicable
on lrconHBL.

10. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

The Board of Directors of the Company confirms:

a) that in the preparation of the annual financial statements for the year ended
318t March 2023, the applicable accounting standards have been followed along with
proper explanation relating to material departures, if any;

b) that such accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently and judgment
and estimates have been made that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year March 31,
2023 and of the Profit & Loss of the Company for that period ended on that date;

c) that proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) that the annual financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis;

e) that proper systems have been devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

11. DIRECTOR’S OBSERVATION AND COMMENT'S FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(EXPLANATION FOR ANY COMMENTS MADE BY AUDITORS IN THEIR REPORT:

The Notes to Accounts forming part of the financial statements are self-explanatory and need
no further explanation. There are no qualifications or adverse remarks in the Auditors’ Report
which require any clarification/explanation.
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STATUTORY AUDITORS:

M/s. Ravi Ramesh & Associates, Chartered Accountants was appointed as first Statutory
Auditors, for the period from 13" January, 2022 to March 31, 2023 by the Comptroller and
Auditor General of India vide CAG letter No./CA.V/COY/Central Government,
IRCHBL(1)/2010 dated May 04, 2022 which was rectify by the Members of the Company at
the second EGM held on 17" May, 2022. They have confirmed by way of a written consent
and certificate as required under Section 139(1) of the Companies Act, 2013.

STATUTORY AUDITORS’ REPORT AND C&AG COMMENTS

The reports of the Statutory Auditors on the Financial Statements for the period from 13
January, 2022 to March 31, 2023 with nil observation are attached separately as part of the
Annual Report along with Non Review Certificate from Comptroller & Auditor General (C&AG)
of India for the period from 13" January, 2022 to 315t March, 2023.

COST RECORDS

Maintenance of cost records as specified by the Central Government under sub-section (1)
of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, is not applicable to the Company during Financial
Year 2022-23.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

The requirement of obtaining a Secretarial Audit Report under Section 204 of the Companies
Act, 2013 from the practicing company secretary is not applicable to the Company.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186
OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013:

There are no transactions of loans, guarantees and investments as covered under the
provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the financial year under review.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES:

During the year, the related party transactions with the holding company, IRCON were in the
ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length basis and approved in terms of the
Companies Act 2013. The details of the related party transactions in form AOC-2 are enclosed
to this report as Annexure — B.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION
OF THE COMPANY AFTER THE CLOSURE OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR:

No material changes and commitments have occurred which affect the financial position of
the Company between the end of the financial year and the date of this report.

10
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19. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE

20.

21.

22.

23.

EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

The particulars as prescribed under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are set out hereunder:

Conservation of energy: -

Your Company is not engaged in any manufacturing activity and hence the furnishing of
particulars is not applicable to the Company.

Technoloqgy absorption: -

Your Company is not engaged in any manufacturing activity and hence the furnishing of
particulars is not applicable to the Company.

Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo: -

There was no Foreign Exchange Earnings and Foreign Exchange Outgo during the period
under review.

RISK MANAGEMENT:

In the opinion of the Board, presently the Company does not foresee any major threat/risk to
the business of the Company.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR):

The provisions of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) under Section 135 of the Companies
Act, 2013 were not applicable to the Company during the period under review.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:

As per Notification dated 5" June, 2015 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs,
Government Companies are exempted from complying with the provisions of Section 197 of
the Companies Act, 2013 and corresponding rules under Chapter XIlI.

IrconHBL being a Government Company is not required to disclose information on the
remuneration of employees falling under the criteria prescribed under rule 5(2) of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel), as a part of the
Directors' Report.

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS:

There is no change in the nature of business of the Company during the period under review.

11
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PUBLIC DEPOSITS:

During the period under review, your Company has not invited any deposits from its members
pursuant to the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules,
2014.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company has adequate system of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements. All the transactions were properly authorized, recorded and reported to the
Management. The Company is following all the applicable Indian Accounting Standards for
properly maintaining the books of account and reporting in the financial statements. Your
Company continues to ensure proper and adequate systems and procedures commensurate
with its size and nature of its business.

SIGNIFICANT MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR
TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY’S
OPERATIONS IN FUTURE

No order has passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals impacting the going concern
status of the Company and its operations in future during the period under review.

COMPLIANCE OF MSME GUIDELINES FOR IMPLEMENTATION OF PURCHASE
PREFERNCE POLICY

In exercise of powers conferred by section 9 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise
Development Act, 2006, the Central Government issued instructions that all companies
registered under the Companies Act, 2013 with a turnover of more than Rs.500 crore and all
CPSEs shall be required to get themselves on-boarded on the Trade Receivables Discounting
System (TReDS) platform, set up as per the notification of the Reserve Bank of India. The
Registrar of Companies (RoC) in each State shall be the competent authority to monitor the
compliance of such instructions and also the Department of Public Enterprises, Government
of India shall be the competent authority to monitor the compliance of such instructions by the
CPSEs.. Registration on TReDS Platform is under process.

DISCLOSURE AS PER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013:

The Company being a wholly owned subsidiary of IRCON, ‘Policy for Prevention, Prohibition
and Redressal of Sexual Harassment at Workplace’ of IRCON (POSH Policy) is applicable
on the Company and the Internal Complaints Committee of IRCON deals with all the matters
under POSH Act.

During the period under review, there was no incidence where any complaint relating to sexual

harassment was reported pursuant Section 22 of The Sexual Harassment of Women at
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

12
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VIGIL MECHANISM:

The provisions of Section 177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013 relating to establishing of a vigil
mechanism are not applicable to Company.

RIGHT TO INFORMATION:

No application under Right to Information Act, 2005 was received by your company during
the financial year 2022-23, however, RTI application transferred from DPE was duly replied
during the financial year 2022-23.

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF BOARD MEMBERS:

Pursuant to the notification of Ministry of Corporate Affairs dated 5" June 2015, sub-sections
(2), (3) & (4) of Sec. 178 regarding the performance evaluation shall not apply to Directors of
Government Company.

Being a Government Company and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Ircon International Limited,
all part-time Directors are nominated by the holding company, IRCON. The evaluation of
these nominated directors is done by the holding company as per pre-defined criteria in line
with the guidelines of the Government of India. Hence, performance evaluation of Directors
is not applicable on your company.

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

During the period, the Company is in compliance with the applicable Secretarial Standards
issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI).

APPLICATION/PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER INSOLVENCY & BANKRUPTCY CODE,
2016

There are no proceeding initiated/ pending against the Company under the Insolvency &
Bankruptcy Code, 2016 which materially impact the business of the Company.

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (MoU):

Pursuant to the provision of Consolidated Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) Guidelines
dated 10" March, 2023 of Department of Public Enterprises (DPE), Companies, that are
subsidiary company of a CPSE, will sign Annual MOU with its holding company and holding
company is free to take a decision regarding exemption from MoU for its subsidiary companies
and process of exemption shall ordinarily be completed by 315t of March of the base year.

Your Company, incorporated as wholly owned subsidiary of IRCON (holding company) and
Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV), will sign Annual MoU with IRCON.

During the period under review, your Company requested IRCON to grant it exemption from
compliance of Annual MOU exercise for the financial year 2023-24, in line with the MOU
Guidelines and IRCON vide its letter dated 06™ February, 2023 has granted exemption to the
Company.

13
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35. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:

We thank Ircon International Limited, Ministry of Road Transport & Highways (MORTH)/
National Highway Authority of India (NHAI), various other Government Agencies, Banks,
Comptroller & Auditor General of India (CA&G) and Statutory Auditors, for their support, and
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For and on behalf of Board of Directors
of Ircon Haridwar Bypass Limited

Sd/-
Devendra Kumar Sharma
Chairman
DIN: 08556821
Date: 01.08.2023
Place: New Delhi
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ANNEXURE — A

FORM NO. AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8 (2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the
Company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso
thereto during the period from 13" January, 2022 to 315 March, 2023

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: NIL
2. Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm’s length basis: as follows

Salient terms of
Duration of the | the Contracts or | Date(s) of Amount
Nature of contracts .
Sr. contracts or | Arrangements or | approval by paid as
or arrangements or : d .
No. - arrangements Transactions the Board, if |advances, if
transactions . . ; ) _
or transactions | including the | any: any:
value, if any
730 Days from
date of
appointment and
Operation & EPC agreement Mobilisation
maintenance for | executed on 2™ 22 July, advance of
1. | EPC Agreement | g rs from September, 2022 2022 Rs.24.78
commercial for Rs.784.58 crore crore
operation date
and
L A ¢ Lease Agreement
Teatsﬁ grleemetrt: One Year executed on 18t 14t NIL (A
2. gf‘; aF‘fO” jease : € 1(01.02.2022to | February, 2022 for Zgg;ary’ Date§ son
Ice rremises o 31.03.2023) rent @ Rs.21,236/-
IRCON)
p.m. plus GST.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
of Ircon Haridwar Bypass Limited

Sd/-
Devendra Kumar Sharma
Chairman
DIN: 08556821
Date: 01.08.2023

Place: New Delhi

15
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Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of
IRCON HARIDWAR BYPASS LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statement

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Financial Statemenis of IRCON HARIDWAR
BYPASS LIMITED ("the Company") which comprises the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the
Statement of Profit and Loss, Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the
period then ended and Notes fo the Financial Statemenis including 2 summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information (herein after referred to as "Standalone
Financial Statements”,

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according fo the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
("the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards} Rules,2015, as amended, ("Ind AS") and other accounting principles
generally aceepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, the profit
gnd total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the period ended on the

ate.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities
under those Siandards are furiher described in the Auditor's Respansibilities for the Audit of the Ind
AS Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance
with the Code of Elhics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountanis of India (ICAl) together
with the independence requirements that are relevant to cur audit of the financial statements under
the provisions of the Companies Acl, 2013 and the Rules made there under, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these reguirements and the ICAl's Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the financial statemenis.

Key Audit Matiers

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our profeszional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements of the current period. These matters were addressed
in the context of our audit of the Ind AS financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereaon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters,

We have determined that there are no Key Audit Matiers to communicate in our report,
Information Other than the Ind AS Financial Statemenis and Auditor's Report thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Company's annual report but does not
include the Ind AS financial staiements and our auditor's report thersan.

Our opinion en the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thareon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our respansibility is te read the oth_er
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledgs obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise

appears to be materially misstated.
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If, based an the wark we have performed, we conclude thal there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Chargad with Governance for the Ind AS Financial Statements
The Company's Beard of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act") with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, changes in
equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in Indig, including the Indian accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133
of the Act read with the Companigs (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,as amendad from
time to time,

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adegquate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities, selection and application of appropriaie accounting
policies, making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implemeniation and maintenance of adequate Internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and Tair view and are free
fram material missiaternent, whether due to fraud ar errar,

In preparing the financial statements, management = responsible for assessing the Company’s
ahility 1o confinue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management gither intends to liguidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporiing
pProcess.

Audiior's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statemenis as 3
whale are free from material misstatemeant, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
reporl that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatemenis can arise fraom fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually er in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected io influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SA's, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We aiso!
Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide @ basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting =
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
invalve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
cantrol,

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in arder to designl audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section143(3)(1) of the Companies Act, 2(!1 3, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal
financial conirols system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

¢« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
eslimates and related disclosures made by manageament
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«  Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or condliions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going
cencern. If we conclude that 2 material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditar's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audi{ evidence obtained up io
the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease lo continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statemenis, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statemeanis represent the underlying transactions and events
in 2 manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Ind AS financial statements that, individually or
in aggregate, makes it probable that the sconomic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of
the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and gualitative
factors in (i} planning the scope of our audit wark and in evaluating the results of our wark; and (ii)
to evaluate the effect of any identified misstaternmeants in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We alsa pravide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters, We describe these matters in our auditor's repori uniess
law or reguistion precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that @ mattershould not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expecied io outweigh the public interest
henefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Reguiremanis

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), Issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11)of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give
in the Annexure A, a statemant on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, tothe
extentapplicable

Z. As reguired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we reportthat

a. We have sought and obiained all the informaticn and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belisf ware necassary forthe purposes of our audit.

b. In our cpinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Gthgr Comprehensive _Inr::ome),
and the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Change in Equily dealt with by this Report
are in agreement with the books of accounl.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements camply with the Indian Accnuntl_ng
Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounis) Rules, 2014,

e. Being a government campany, provision of section 184(2) of the Act are not applicable pursuant
io the notification No. G.S.R.463(E) dated 56th June 2015, issued by the Central Government of

18



Chartered Accountants

RAVI RAMESH & ASSOCIATES i % |

=

Wi

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separale Report in
‘“Annexure BY.

Being a governmant company, provision of section 197 of the Act are not applicable wide
notification no. GSR 463 (E) dated 5th June 2015, issued by the Central Government of India.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 as amended, in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according ta the explanations given to us:

The Company does not have any pending litigations which would have a material impact on
its financial position.

Basad on the assessment made by the Company, there are no material foreseeable losses
an long-term contracts that may reguire any provisioning. The Company did not have any
derivative cantracts for which there were any maierial foreseeable losses.

There wera no amounts which were reguired to be iransferred, to the Investor Education

and Protection Fund by the Company.

(a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources
or kind of funds) by the Company lo or in any other psrson or entity, including foreign
entity (‘Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guaraniee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

{b) The Management has represented, thai, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds (which are material ither individually or in the aggregate) have been received by
the Company fram any person or entity, inciuding foreign entity ("Funding Parties"™), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall,
whether, directly or indirecily, lend or invest in other parsons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(¢) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered ressonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing nas come to our notice that has caused us to believe that
the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(g), as provided under and
{b) above, contain any material misstatement.

The Company has not proposed, declared or paid any final or interim dividend during the

pericd and until the date of this report, iherefore, the reporting under clause is not
applicable.

Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of
account using accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log)
facility is applicable to the Comgany with effect from April 1, 2023, and accordingly,
reporting under Rule 11(g} of Companies (Audit and Audiiors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable
for the financial year ended March 31, 2023.
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General of India, we report that:

As required by Section 143(5) of the Act and as per directions issued by Comptroller and Auditor

5.hNol

Directions

T

Auditor's Replies

1 Whether the company has system in place to

process all the accounting transactions
through IT system? If yes, the implications of
processing of accounting  fransactions
outside IT sysiem on the Integrity of the
accounts along with the financial implications,
if any, may be staled.

Company is using SAP sysiem to pracess
gl the accounting transactions, As per the
information and explanation provided fo us |
no accounting ftransactions have been
processed outside the IT System.

Wiether thers is any restruciuring of an
existing loan or cases of waiverfwrite off of
debis/loanafinterest etc. made by a lender {o
the company due to the campany's inability
to repay the loan? If yes, the financial impact
may be stated. \Whether such cases are
properly accounted for? {In case, lenderis a
Govemnment company, then this direction is
also applicable for statutory auditor of lender
camparty).

No, Company is having no case of any
restruciuring of an existing loan or cases of
waiverhwrite off of debts/loansfinterest etc.
made by a lender to the company due to
the company's inability to repay the loan.

Whether funds  (granisfsubsidy  etc)
receivedireceivable for specific schemes
from Central/State Government or its
agencies were  propefly  accounted
| forjutilized as per its term and conditions?
List the cases of deviation

According 1o the information  and
explanation given to us and as per our
examination of records, no funds have
been receivedireceivable for any speciiic
scheme from Ceniral/State Government or
it 2gencies during the period covered
under report

Place: Mew Delhi
Dated: 12! May,2023

For RAVI RAMESH & ASSOCIATES
Charlered Accouniants

FRMN MNo. 004 ig?l\f

CA SUBHASH BANSAL
FPartner

a2 : M.Nc.085785
UDIN: 2363585 6t 2R AL
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ANNEXURE “A" To the Independent Auditors' Report

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ of our report of
even dats)

Re: IRCON HARIDWAR BYPASS LIMITED (the “Company™)

On the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate and according to the information and
explanation given to us during the course of our audit, we report that:

(i) (a} A) The Company Is maintaining proper recards showing full particulars, Including quantitaiive
detalls and situation of Praperty, Plant and Equipment

B) The Company has no intangible assets.

(b} Tha Property, Plant and Equipment have besn physically verified by the management during
the year and to the best of ouwr knowledge and information given to us, no material
discrepancies were identified on such verification

(c] According to the information and explanations given io us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the company, the company has no immovable properties.

(d} The Company has not revalued its properties, plant and equipment.

(e} According to the information and explanation given to us, no proceedings have been initiated
or are pending against the company for holding any benami property under the Banami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1888 (45 of 1888} and rules made thersunder,

(i) The company does not have any inventory during the year under review, therefore clause(iiy of
Para 3 of Companies (Auditor's Report) order, 2020 [s not applicable to the company.

(i) As informed, the Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189
of the Act.

{iv}) According to the information and explanation given o us, the company has no loans, investments,
guarantees or security where provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are to
be complied with.

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits under
the directives of the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other
relevant provisions of the Cempanies Act, 2013 and the rules framed thereunder, where applicable.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

(vi) In our opinion Clause (vi) of Clause 3 of the Order relating to cost accounting records s not
applicable during the period under report.

(vii) (2) The Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Gnqu
and Services Tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, senice
taze, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added ta%, cess and any other statutory dues, as
applicable, with the appropriate authorities. Further, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect thereof were outstanding at the year-end for a period of more than six months from the

date they became payable

(b} There are no dues in respect of Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employees’ state
insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax,
cess and any other statutory dues that have not been deposited with the appropriate

autharities on account of any dispute.
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(vili) According fo the information and explanation given 1o us, there were no transactions relating to
previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year
in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1861

(ix} {a} According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of company
examined by us, during the pericd under review, the company has not taken any loans from
banks or financizl Institulions.

{b) The Company has not been declared williul defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government ar any government authority as st the end of the year

(g} The Company has not taken any term loan during the year.
{d) The company has not raised any funds on short term basis.

(e According to the information and explanation given fo us, the company has not taken any
funds from any entity or person on account of or 1o meet the obligations of its subsidiaries,
associales or joint venlures,

{fy The Company has no borrowing, including debt securities during the year.

(x) (&) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public ofier or further public offer
{including debt instruments) during the year.

(b} During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or opticnally) and hence reporting under
clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

{xi) Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of
the financial statements and as per the information and explanations given by the management, we
repart that no fraud by the company or any fraud on the Company by its officers or employees has
hesn noticed or reported during the year.

(xii) Inour opinion, the Company is not a nidhi Company. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of
the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(xiii) Based on information and explanations given to us by the management, all transactions with the
related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable and the
details have heen disclosed in the financial Statements as required by the applicable accounting
standards and the Companies Act 2013,

{xiv) In our opinion the requirement of inlernal audit does not apply to the company,

(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations glven to us, me company has not
entered into any non-cash transaction with directors or person connected with him which is covered
by Seclion 192 of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(xv) of the Order are nat
applisable to the Company.

(xul) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given fo us, the company I; nok
required to be registered under section 45 |A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1834 Accordingly,
the provisions of clause 3(xvi) of the Order are not applicable o the Company.

(xvil) According to the information and explanations given to us and based an the audit procedures
conducted we are of opinion that the company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial
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(xwiil) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.

(xixj On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and
payment of financial lisbilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and basad on our examination of the
svidence supporling the assumptions, nothing has come to ocur altention, which causes us to
believe that any material uncertainty exisis as on the date of the audit report indicating that
company is incapable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when
they fall due within a period of one year from the balance shest date. \We howevear, state that this is
not an assurance as to the future viahility of the company. We further state that our reporting is
based on the facts up 1o the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that all liabilities falling due within 2 period of one year from the balance sheet date, will
get discharged by the company as and when they fall due.

(xx) The provisions of Section 135 towards corporate social responsibility are not applicable on the
company. Accardingly, the provisions of clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable.

(xxi) The reporting under clause (i) i not applicable in respect of audit of standalone financial
statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in respect of said clause
uncer this report.

For RAVI RAMESH & ASSOCIATES
o . Chartered Accountants
Siie --'-_5"—.‘ FRN Mo. 0043068M

=) S
| ‘J‘I. o J'” .ﬂ;l\)'f —
\Lr b SUBHASH BANSAL
Partner
Place: MNew Delhi M.No. 085785

Dated:12" May 2023
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ANMEXURE “B" To the Independent Auditors® Report

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' of our report
of even date)

Re: IRCOM HARIDWAR BYPASS LIMITED (the “"Company”)

We have audited ihe internal financial contrels over financial reporting of IRCON HARIDWAR BYPASS
LIMITED ("the Company") as of March 31st 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the company for the period ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internai Financial Centrols

The Company's management is responsible for esiablishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on, “the intermal cantrol over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of Internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audil of Internal Financial
Contrals Over Financial Reporting issued by the Insiitute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAL)"
These responsibiliies include the design, implementation and maintenance of adeguate intermnal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efiicient conduct of its
business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. VWe conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Owver Financial Reporting (the *Guidance Note') and the Standards on
Auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Mote reguire that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
ever financial reporting was established and maintained and if such conirols operated effectively in ail
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to oblain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectivensss. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtzining an understanding of internal financial
contrals over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the audiior's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
maierial misstatement of the financial siatements, whether due to fraud or error.

\We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to prw_il:le a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controis Over Financial Reporting _
A company's internal financlal control over financial reporting is a process desngr]ed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the relisbllity of financial reporting and the preparation ?f financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted _ar_:cnunimg principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes Thuse policies and pr_ocadures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasanable detail, e_.cc:urately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonatgle assurance lh;t
transactions are recorded as necessary o permit preparation of financial statements in accordance uftih
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with aulhorizations of management and_ directors of the company, and (3)
-—==._provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or limely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use,
/' r disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporiing

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporiing, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of conirols, material misstatements due o error
ar fraud may occur and nof be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
contrals over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the intemal financial control
over financial repariing may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company
has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reparting and
such internal financial controls over financial reporiing were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023,
“based on the internal control aver financial reporling criteria established by the Company considering
the essential componenis of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountanis of India®.

For RAVI RAMESH & ASSOCIATES
Chariered Accountants
FRMN No. 0D4308N

CA SUBHASH BANSAL

Pariner
M.MNo. 085785
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Flace: Mew Delhi
Dated: 12" May,2023
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Ireon Haridwar Bypass Limited
CIN:-U45209DL2022G 01392406

Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2023
Al amaunts in Jidien Rupees Lokhs wnloss ovherwlse stared)

Particulars Nate Ag at 315t March, 2023
ASSETS
Mo Current Assets
(ay Praperly, Plant and Egqugpnent 3 31
(b} Ehefemed Tas Assets(net) 1 e
() Financial Aseis
{11 Dhher Finonecial Assols 3 eo
) Qe Nen-Current Assals z
Total Non-Curren) Assels .35
Cwrvent assots
(] Financtl Assets [
(i) Cash and Cash Equivalents Gl i, 82
{iiy Loans =
tik Other Fusincial Assers &l 3.299.16
(b1 Crrrerd Tax Assels [Mei) 7 ol
{2} Other Cumepl Asseis i 341745
Tatnl Current Assets §.761.46
TOTAL ASSETS §.761.81
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
{a) Eaunty Share Capiial > 500
() Ofber Equity 10 B.2%4.00
Tutal Equity £.299.00
Linhilirges
Mon-Clurrent Linhilities
fat Fimancial Liabilities
(1) L Lisbilties -
[{i) Trade: Payables
- total outstanding duss af mienn enlepwises afd sl crleprises -
- 1otal outstanding ducs of creditors othee than of micro enterprizes and samall enterprises ~
Tortal Man=Currend Linbilities =
Current Liabilifies
() Famancl Liakifities
(1] Lease Liabilnies -
() Tride Payablez I
- Aotel oustanding duigs of wigra eneprises and sl emerprises 11 o3l
- total cutsianding dues of ereditors ather isn of miero enterprises 2 small eatemnses i 3307
[mi} (i Fimangiad Liatalityes Ih.2 b.53
[} CHbzr Currenl Liabilitics k2 [5.00
(e} Cvent Tax Linbilities (Net) I3 =
Total Current Linhilities S61.51
TOTAL BOUITY AND LIABILITIES 5,761.81
Summary of siznificant soeounting policies 1
The weeom punying notes ave on Integral et of tie Geancial stifements, 1o 38

As per our report of even daie -
For Ravi Ramiesh & Associaies

[CAl Firm Registration No. - 004306
riered Accouniants

FRH 004306 8
HE'WDELH

Plave: New Delhi
Date : 12.05.2023
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Ircon Haridwar Bypass Limited

Masood Ahmad
[irector
(DIN 09008553}

Mugtint
[rector
(DIN:-08517013)

oju (Jowda




Ircon Haridwar Bypass Limited
CIN:-U45209D1L2022G 01392406

Statement of Profit and Loss for the period from 13th January 2022 to 31st March 2023

(A1l amaums in dndian Rupees Lakhs unless otherwise siated)

For the period from 13th

Particulars Note ) January 2022 (Date of
incorporation) to 31st Mareh
2023
Income
Fevenue from operatinns 14.1 230563
Oabser income M2 10392
Total Income (A) 5.309.55
Expensey
Projeet Expenscs 15 5,009 54
Empleyes benelils expenses I 2479
Finance Coste 17 924
Depreciation and amartization expenses 3 010
(Other expenses 18 T30
Total cxpenses (B) 5.206.27
Profitd Loss) before tax (A-Bj 105,28
Tax expenses 4
Current lay 26.24
Drzferred 2 (not) (02}
26,22
Profit/{Loss) for the period TT.06
Dher comprehénsive income/(loss)
A) ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Income tax welating 1o liems that will not he reclassified to profit or loss :
B Iems that will be reclazsified to profit or losz =
Income tax elating 1o ltems thet will be reclessified to profit or loss 2
(Mher comprehensive income/{loss) for the period (net of tax) =
Tatal Comprehensive incomei(loss) for the period TT.06
Earnings per equity share (Face Value Per Equity Share Rs. 10) s
Basic 154.12
it 154,12
sSemmary of significant accounting policies 2
The aceampanying notes are an integral po et of the fnancial statements, 1to 3%
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Ircon Haridwar Bypass Limited
CIN:-U45209DL2022G 01392406

Cash Flow Statement for the period from 13th January 2022 to 315t March 2023

(Al amicsints in Tncien Rupoes Lakhe salese otherese stated)

Farticulars

For the peciod From 13060
Januiry 2022 (Dage of
imen e rntion) ta 315t Margh
203

A Cashy Row from aperaling activiies
Prafit hefore my

2
A fustmemngs for 5,28
|j|‘.‘[||'|!l."].lIInnl"AlllmIl;@liﬂu omin
Ineerest [nea e (1392
lubeyest Expenses ool
Lews on clsposal of asscls %
Bl Dizhds -
Ta T the Carbier Y cars 2
Opreruging profis before working capital chinges A L]
Muvem ends in workiong ol
Increasei(decrensel in niber non-errrent linkility %
Inireasedecressed in othes cureit Mnancial Babilides A5
Iercaseddecrease in Cerent Trade Payalbles 35123
Imeronsefdecyease ) in other non-cuvent fuancial liabilifes .
lpercase/fdacsense) in other cwrront liabilicy 10580
Icreasebecredsy ) in nop-cunent provisions E
Incrcase/fddo treitsg ) o) cument provisiong "
[teerensemercase) in iwade recoivabl es -
Devivised merense) v inveniorics -
Drenemmedinerease) imnon corrent Gnnicinl loans C
Deoreasedmercase) m Loans & cuvenr Fnascig| psseis {5,350, 16)
Dezienefmercase) i other Mon-curenl asscts (e
Decreased ncrcase) in other curren pssets (5. 17,45}
Cash Geverated from Operaton (B258.T1)
Lase » Inecme Tox Pmd 6.5
Met ensh fow from{wsed in) operating ootivithes [A) (8,279.98)
B, Cush Mows fram investing aciivities
Puchuse of PIME (42)
listerest Inomng 1ir3,
el gael Mas Froin S wsed Do dnvesting uerivithes | B 113,500
O Cash Mow Mrow Minen clng o etlvliles
Proec s lom ficd s of share capatal 500
Tnilcrest cxpetises (040
Lo From Treom International Laniied bs guast cagital 216
Puet cash Mo feomdesed o) in Gogncing oclivities {C) 822 1,30
Mot e veasel{deerease) in coshoand ensh eguivalents (A + B +Cj 44 82
Cnsh ond eash eguivalents o the beginaing of the penod &
Clhising csh ol cush equivalents 44,82

Pariicalars

Asnt 3=t March 2023

Components of ensh and cash equivalenis®
= Cnsdy on hamd

.03

- Witk onks m ewrent oceownt
= Drepogil with oo inal mdinrily of less i 3 wdunhs L ]
Total ensh anid cash equivalents as per Balanee Sheet and Statement of Cash Flows 4,52

*Enremaked Fard
Meitey:
1. Fisites i bz kets mdicate cash avtflow

2 The Stakement of Cash Mows has been propaced umder (e Indireet meflod set oot n Ind AS=7Stntenient of Cash Flow” nonified onder the Compantes (Indion A ceonnting

Stantlosds) FBules, 2003

3. Reconeihaion of Cash and Cish Equnabents and Conypanents of Cash and Cash Equivalents incluced m ihe abeve Statement of Cash Flaws :
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Ircon Haridwar Bypass Limited
CIN:-U45209DL2022G 01392406

Statement of chinges in equiry fur the period from 1 3th January 2022 4o 31st March 2023

{eE] cpmenneiy i P Rispees Leaklon onJens ofhensire vianed)

0] Equity Slere Capinal

Trticiibnes

AR B

lalnace as ar L3 Jamnary 2027

Cliampes in equity shure capliad during the perind

500

Dafonee asat 3ise March 2023

S,

i) Other Equiry

Forticiilars
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Hher Compreheiieoe lncome luasd ey ity
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Tarnd

Balamer as ad 13k Jannary 3073

Totad pafif for e period
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| Addditinn in Gunsi Eruity

1107 =

F 821594
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Ircon Haridwar Bypass Limited
Notes to financial statements for the period ended Mareh 31, 2023.

1. Corporate Information

Ircon Haridwar Bypass Limited (the “Company™) is domiciled and incorporated in India and is a
wholly owned subsidiary of Ircon International Limited (IRCON), public sector construction company
domiciled in India. The Company (CIN U45209DL2022G0OI392406) is incorporated under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 applicable in India.

The Company came into existence when IRCON was awarded the work of upgradation & construction
of four laning of Haridwar Bypass Package-1 from Km0+000 (Km 188+100 of NH-58) to Km 15+100(
Km5+100 of NH-74) in the state of Uttarakhand on Hybrid Annuity basis In pursuant to the provisions
of “Request for Proposal”, the selected bidder ‘IRCON® has formed a Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV)
named Ircon Haridwar bypass Limited as wholly owned subsidiary of IRCON, incorporated on
13.01.2022. Accordingly, the Company has signed the Concession Agreement with NHAL on 8"
March, 2022 for the project value amounting to Rs 861 Crore. The Concession period is 15 vears from
Commercial Operation Date (COD) and Construction period is 730 days from Appointed Date. The
registered office of the company is located at C-4, District Centre, Saket, New Delhi- 110017.

The presentation and functional currency of the company is Indian Rupees (INR), Figures in financial
statements are presented in lakhs, by rounding off upto two decimals except for per share data and as
otherwise stated.

The financial statements are approved for issue by the company’s Board of Directors in their meeting
held on 12,05.2023

2. Significant Accounting Policies

2.1 Basis of preparation
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under section 133
of the Companies Act, 2013 read together with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and presentation requirements of Division 11 of Schedule 111 to
the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule I1I}, as applicable to the financial statements.

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis following accrual system of
accounting. The Company has adopted the historical cost basis for assets and liabilities, except for the
following assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value:

® Provisions, where the effect of time value of money is material are measured at present value
® Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value
° Defined benefit plans and other long-term employee benefits

22 Summary of significant accounting policies

A summary of the significant accounting pelicies applied in the preparation of the financial statements
are as given below. These accounting policies have been applied consistently to all periods presented in
the financial statements.

2.2.1 Current vs non-current classification
. The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current
1 :;_:llt:'lés_s ification.
: A An'asset is treated as current when it is: &/_-
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Ircon Haridwar Bypass Limited
Notes to financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2023.

Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

Held primarily for the purpose of trading

Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle aliability for at
least twelve months after the reporting period

¢ ¢ @ @

The Company classifies all other assets as non-current.

A liability is current when:
o |tisexpected to be settled in normal operating cycle
¢ Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading
o Itisdue to be settledwithin twelve months after the reporting period, or
o There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for atleast twelve months
after the reporting period

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization
in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

2.2.2 Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and Initial Measurement

Property, plant and equipment is recognized when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of each item can be measured reliably.
Property, plant and equipment are initially stated at their cost.

Cost of asset includes

a) Purchase price, net of any trade discount and rebates

b) Borrowing cost if capitalization criteria is met’

¢) Cost directly attributable to the acquisition of the assets which incurred in bringing asset to its
working condition for the intended use

d) Incidental expenditure during the construction period is capitalized a3 part of the indirect
construction cost to the extent the expenditure is directly related to construction or is incidental
thereto.

¢) Present value of the estimated costs of dismantling & removing the items & restoring the site
on which it is located if recognition criteria are met.

Freehold land is carried at historical cost.

Subsequent measurement

Property, plant and equipment are subsequently measured at cost net of accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Subsequent expenditure is capitalized if it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company and cost of
the expenditure can be measured reliably.

Cost of replacement, major inspection, repair of significant parts and borrowing costs for long-term
construction projects are capitalized if the recognition criteria are met.

( ,The machinery spares are capitalized if recognition criteria are met.

10 | %
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Ircon Haridwar Bypass Limited
Notes to financial statements for the period ended Mareh 31, 2023.

223

Depreciation and useful lives

Depreciation on praperty. plant and equipment, excluding freehold land and leasehold land acquired
on perpetual lease is provided on straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as
specified in schedule II of the Companies act. 2013

However, in case of certain class of assets, the Company uses different useful life than those
prescribed in Schedule IT of the Companies Act, 2013, The useful life has been assessed based on
technical evaluation, taking into account the nature of those classes of assets, the estimated usage of
the asset on the basis of the management’s best estimation of getting economic benefits from the
asset. The estimated useful life as per the technical evaluation viz-a-viz Schedule II of the Companies
Act, 2013 has been disclosed in the notes to accounts.

Depreciation on additions to/deductions from property, plant and equipment during the period is
charged on pro-rata basis from/up to the date on which the asset is available for use/disposed

Each part of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is depreciated separately if the cost of part is
significant in relation to the total cost of the item and useful life of that part is different from the

useful life of remaining asset. Leasehold land acquired on perpetual lease is not amortized.

Property plant and equipment acquired during the period, individually costing up to Rs. 5000/- are
fully depreciated, by keeping Re. 1 as token value for identification. However, Mobile phones

provided to employees are charged 1o statement of profit and loss irrespective of its value.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and
adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. “Ordinarily, the residual value of an asset is up to 5% of the
original cost of the asset” as specified in Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013

Derecognition

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain
or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss when
the asset is derecognized.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Al each reporting date, the Company assesses, whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the
Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use.
Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying
amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is
written down Lo its recoverable amount and the impairment loss, including impairment on inventories

.are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.
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Ircon Haridwar Bypass Limited
Notes to financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2023.

224

a)

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether
there is an indication that previously recognized impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased.
If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A
previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions
used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. The
reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount,
nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no
impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior period. Such reversal is recognized in the
statement of profit and loss,

Revenue recognition

Service concession arrangement

Financial Assets Under Service concession Arrangements (Appendix C to Ind AS 115 — Revenue

from Contracts with Customers)

The Company recognise a financial asset to the extent that it has an unconditional contractual right
to receive cash or another financial asset from or at the direction of the grantor (“"NHAI") for the
construction services and Operation & Maintenance services),

Such financial assets are initially measured at fair value i.e. present value and subsequently at amortized
cost using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. Under this method, financial asset will be increased
for the financing element and reduced as and when money is received from grantor

Ind AS 115 — Revenue from Contracts with Customers)
The Company recognizes and measures revenue from construction and Operation & Maintenance
services) in accordance with /md AS -1{5*Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

Company combine the two or more contracts entered into at or near the same time with the same customer
and account for the contracts as a single contract if contracts are negotiated as a package with a single
commercial objective or amount of consideration to be paid in one coniract depends on the price or
performance of the other contract or goods or services promised in the contracts are single performance
obligation.

Transaction price (it does not involve significant financing component) is the price which is contractually
agreed with the customer for provision of services. Revenue is measured at the transaction price that is
allocated to the performance obligation and it excludes amounts collected on behalf of third partiesie
GST and is adjusted for variable considerations

The nature of Company’s contract gives rise to several types of variable consideration including
escalation and liquidated damages.

Any subsequent change in the transaction price is then allocated to the performance obligations in the
contract on the same basis as at contract inception

The Company recognizes revenue for variable consideration when it is probable that a significant reversal
in the amount cumulative revenue recognized will not occur, The company estimates the amount of
revenue to be recognized on variable consideration using most likely amount method.
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Ircon Haridwar Bypass Limited
Notes to financial statements for the period ended Mareh 31, 2023,

Consequently, amounts allocated to a satisfied performance obligation are recognized as revenue, or as a
reduction of revenue, in the period in which the transaction price changes.

The company satisfies a performance obligation and recognizes the revenue overtime, if any of the
following criteria is met:

a) The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the entity’s
performance as the entity perform

b) The entity’s performance creates or enhances an asset (for example, work in progress)
that the customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced or

) The entity’s performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the entity and

the entity has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date.

For performance obligation satisfied over time, the revenue recognition is done by measuring the
progress, using percentage completion method, towards complete satisfaction of performance obligation.
The progress is measured in terms of a proportion of actual cost incurred to-date, to the total estimated
cost attributable to the performance obligation. However, where the Company is not be able to reasonably
measure the outcome of a performance obligation, but the Company expects to recover the costs incurred
in satisfying the performance obligation, the Company recognise revenue only to the extent of the costs
incurred until such time that it can reasonably measure the outcome of the performance obligation. A
Cumulative calch up adjustment would be recognized in the period in which entity is able to reasonably
measure its progress,

Performance obligation is measured by applying input method. In the contracts where performance
obligation cannot be measured by input method, the output method is applied, which faithfully depict the
Company’s performance towards complete satisfaction of the performance obligation.

Contract modifications are accounted for when additions, deletions or changes are approved either to the
contract scope or confract price.

The accounting for modifications of contracts involves assessing whether the services added to the
existing contract are distinct and whether the pricing is at the standalone selling price. Services added
that are not distinct are accounted for on a cumulative catch up basis, while those that are distinct are
accounted for prospectively, either as a separate contract, if additional services are priced at the
standalone selling price, or as a termination of existing contract and creation of a new contract if not
priced at the standalone selling price.

Contract balances

Contract assets: A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred
to the customer. If the Company performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the
customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognized for the earned

consideration that is conditional

Trade receivables: A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is
unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer
to accounting policies of financial assets in section (XX) Financial instruments — initial recognition and
subsequent measurement,

v Eonh‘acl liabilities A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for
whichithe Company has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer.
If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the cusm&ia/_
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Ircon Haridwar Bypass Limited
Notes to financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2023,

22.5

2.2.6

contract liability is recognized when the payment is made, or the payment is duc (whichever is earlier).

Contract liabilities are recognized as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

Other income

Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive payment is established.

Interest income is recognized using Effective Interest rate method.

Miscellaneous income is recognized when performance obligation is satisfied and right to reccive the

income is established as per terms of contract.

Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Company incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period to get ready for its intended use or
sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are charged to statement
of profit and loss as incurred. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent
regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

Taxes
a) Current income Tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from
or paid to the taxation authorities in accordance with relevant tax regulations. Current tax is
determined as the tax payable in respect of taxable income for the period and is computed in
accordance with relevant tax regulations. Current income tax is recognized in statement of profit and
loss except to the extent it relates to items recognised outside profit or loss in which case it is
recognized outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax
items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where
appropriate.

Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to
offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

b) Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting
date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted al the reporting date.

Deferred tax is recognized in statement of profit and loss except to the extent it relates fo items
recognised outside profit or loss, in which case is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other

" comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the
. underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.
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Ircon Haridwar Bypass Limited
Notes to financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2023,

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each
reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit
will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.

2.2.7 Foreign currencies

® Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (“the functional currency™). The financial
statements are presented in Indian Rupees which is also the functional and presentation currency
of the Company.

e Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the functional currency, by applying the exchange
rate between the functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

Foreign currency monetary items outstanding at the reporting date are converted to functional
currency using the closing rate (Closing selling rates for liabilities and closing buying rate for
assets). Non-monetary items denominated in a foreign currency which are carried at historical
cost are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transactions,

Exchange differences arising on settlement of monetary items, or restatement as at reporting date,
at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded, are recognized in the statement
of profit and loss in the period in which they arise. These exchange differences are presented in
the statement of profit and loss on net basis.

2.2.8  Employee henefit

a) Short-term employee benefits

Employee benefits such as salaries, short term compensated absences, and Performance Related
Pay (PRP} falling due wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-
term employee benefits and undiscounted amount of such benefits are expensed in the statement
of profit and loss in in the period in which the employee renders the related services.

b) Post-employment benefits and Other Long term Employee Benefits

The Post employee benefits & other long term Employee Benefits are provided by Ircon
International Limited. the Holding Company, as the employees are on the deputation from the
Holding Company.

ash and cash equivalent include cash on hand, cash at banks and short-term deposits with original d

§._Zs
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Ircon Haridwar Bypass Limited
Notes to financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2023,

maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of unrestricted cash
and short-term deposits, as defined above as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s
cash management.

2.2.10 Dividend

Annual Dividend distribution to the Company’s equity shareholders is recognized as liability in the
period in which dividend is approved by the shareholders. Any interim dividend is recognized as
liability on approval by the Board of Directors. Dividend payable and corresponding tax on dividend
distribution, if any, is recognized directly in equity.

2.2.11 Provisions, contingent assets and contingent liahilities

a) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation, The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reparting period, considering the risk and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-
tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used,
the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

b) Onerous contracts

An onerous confract is a contract under which the unavoidable costs (i.e., the costs that the
Company cannot avoid because it has the contract) of meeting the obligations under the contract
exceed the economic benefits expected to be received under it. The unavoidable costs under a
contract reflect the least net cost of exiting from the contract, which is the lower of the cost of
fulfilling it and any compensation or penalties arising from failure to fulfil it. If the Company has a
contract that is onerous, the present obligation under the contract is recognised and measured as a
provision. However, before a separate provision for an onerous contract is established, the
Company recognises any impairment loss that has occurred on assets dedicated to that contract.

These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best
cstimates,

¢) Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation or present obligations that
may but probably will not, require an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or the
amount of such obligation cannot be measured reliably. When there is possible obligation or a
present obligation in respect of which likelihood of outflow of resources embodying economic

__.benefits is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.
PACUET N
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Ircon Haridwar Bypass Limited
Notes to financial statements for the period ended Mareh 31, 2023.

d) Contingent assects

Contingent assets are not recognized though are disclosed, where an inflow of economic benefits
is prabable.

22.12 Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, il'the

contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period in exchange for
consideration.

a) Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognizes lease liabilities to make
lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

i) Right-of-use assets

The Company recognizes right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.c., the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accurmnulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any re-measurement of lease liabilities. The
cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs
incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives
received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term
and the estimated useful lives of the assets.

Leasehold land acquired on perpetual lease is not amortized.

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost
reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of
the asset.

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment.

ii}] Lease linbilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognizes lease liabilities measured at the
present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also mclude the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce
inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs,

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate
at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
. deten'ninab]e After the commencement date, the amount of lease }iabilities is increased to reﬂect the
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determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying
asset.

The Company's lease liabilities are included in financial liabilities
iii) Short term lease and leases of low value assets

The Company applies the shori-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases contracts
including lease of residential premises and offices (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12
maonths or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies
the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered
to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised
as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

b) Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on
a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss
due to its operating nature. [nitial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the
same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they
are earned.

2.2.13 Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

a) Financial assets

Initial recognirtion and measurement

All Financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus or minus transaction cost that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets (other than financial assets at
fair value through profit and loss). Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in statement of profit and loss.

Sh'bﬁ'l?ﬂﬂﬂﬂ! measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

= Debtinstruments at amortised cost

A “debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a. The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting

coniractual cash flows, and
b. Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely

payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

’;1:';"“ After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost
72K Saising the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into
atoount any discount or prcmlum on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the

FIR . The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses ansln@”

39



Ircon Haridwar Bypass Limited
Notes to financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2023,

from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade
and other receivables,

o Debt instruments at FVTOCT

A “debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

a. The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows
and selling the financial assets, and

b. Coniractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding,

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each
reporting date at fair value, Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive
income (OCI). However, the Company recognizes interest income, impairment losses &
reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the statement of profit and loss. On derecognition
of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity
to statement of profit and loss. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is
reported as interest income in statement of profit and loss using the EIR method.

= Debt instruments at FVTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet
the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all
changes recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

e Equity instruments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments
which are held for trading classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company
may make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes
in the fair value. The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The
classification 15 made on initial recognition and is irrevocable,

If the Company decides to classify an equity insirument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value
changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling
of the amounts from OCI to statement of profit and loss, even on sale of investment. However,
the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all
changes recognized in the Statement of profit and loss.

Impairment of financial assels

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all
cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR.

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit
risk exposure:

.i'tiﬁ?cgﬁqur[li%, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance
| “B-FRinancial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOCI
7Lease receivables under Ind AS 116 dQ,

7= .. —-a. Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt
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d. Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result
from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 115

e. Loan commitments which are not measured as at FVTPL

f. Financial puarantee contracts which are not measured as at FVTPL

The Company follows ‘simplified approach” for recognition of impairment loss allowance on;

e  Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables; and
e  All lease receivables resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 116

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit
risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting
date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company
determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial
recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for
impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly. lifetime ECL is used. If, in
a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts io recognising
impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial asset. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which
results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as
income/ expense in the statement of profit and loss. This amount is reflected under the head
‘other expenses” in the statement of profit and loss. The balance sheet presentation for various
financial instruments is described below:

= Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables and lease
receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measurement
of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until
the asset meets write-off criteria, the Company does not reduce impairment allowance from
the gross carrying amount.

* Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: ECL is presented as a provision in
the balance sheet, i.e. as a liability.

e Debt instruments measured at FVTOCI: For debt instruments measured at FVOCI, the
expected credit losses do not reduce the carrying amount in the balance sheet, which
remains at fair value, Instead, an amount equal to the allowance that would arise if the asset
was measured at amortised cost is recognised in other comprehensive income as the
‘accumulated impairment amount”™

The Company does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) financial

assets, i.e., financial assets which are credit impaired on purchase/ origination.

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
.~ financial assets) is derecopnized only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the

fo
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The difference between the carrying amount and the amount of consideration received /
receivable is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

b) Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

All hinancial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings other
financial liabilities etc.

Subseguent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

* Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

The company has not designated any financial liabilities at FVTPL.

e Financial liabilities at amortized cost

Loans, borrowings, trade pavables and other finemcial liabilities

After initial recognition, Loans, borrowings, trade payables and other financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised
in statement of profit or lass when the liabilities are de-recognised as well as through the EIR
amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires, When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts
is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

¢} Financial puarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment
to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make
a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantec
contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured
at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind
AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation.

e Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition.
iter initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity

-
ﬁ-‘?“"_‘-‘-."‘f{lt P
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instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments. a
reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those assets.
Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. Such changes are evident to
external parties. A change in the business model oceurs when the Company either begins or
ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If the Company reclassifies
financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which
is the first day of the immediately next reporting period following the change in business madel.

The Company does nat restate any previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment
gains or losses) or interest,

e) Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the balance
sheet if there is a currently enforceable contractual legal right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to seftle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liahilities
simultaneously.

2.2.14  Fair value measurement

—

The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each reporting period.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either:

* [In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
* In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and besl use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that
i5 significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

e Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

\ &, For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial slatements on a recurring basis, the

Fit

~Cpmpany determines whether transfers have oceurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing

LN

'“,'u‘.ﬁciillt'ﬁg risation {based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
= Jtn]
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whole) at the end of each reporting period.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets and liabilities, if any, At each
reporting date, the Company analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are
required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Company’s accounting policies.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities
on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair
value hierarchy as explained above.

Above is the summary of accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are
given in the relevant notes.

2.2.15 Non - current asset held for sale

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as assets held for sale when their carrying
amount is to be recovered principally through a sale transaction and a sale is considered highly
probable, The sale is considered highly probable only when the asset or disposal group is available
for immediate sale in its present condition, it is unlikely that the sale will be withdrawn, and sale is
expected within one year from the date of the classification. Disposal groups classified as held for
sale are stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. Property, plant and
equipment, investment property and intangible assets are not depreciated or amortized once classified
as held for sale. Assets classified as held for sale/distribution are presented separately in the balance
sheet.

If the criteria stated by IND AS 105 “Non-current Assets Held for Sale” are no longer met, the
disposal group ceases to be classified as held for sale. Non-current asset that ceases to be classified
as held for sale are measured at the lower of (i) its carrying amount before the asset was classified as
held for sale, adjusted for depreciation that would have been recognized had that asset not been
classified as held for sale, and (ii) its recoverable amount at the date when the disposal group ceases
to be classified as held for sale. The depreciation reversal adjustment related property, plant and
equipment, investment property and intangible assets is charged to statement of profit and loss in the
period when non-current assets held for sale criteria are no longer met.

2.2.16 Prior Period Adjustment

Errors/omissions discovered in the current year relating to prior periods are treated as immaterial and
adjusted during the current year, if all such errors and omissions in aggregate does not exceed 0.50%
of total operating revenue as per last audited financial statement of the Company.

2.2.17  Operating Segment

Operating segments are reported in the manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
Chiel Operating Decision Maker (CODM). The CODM is responsible for allocating resources and
accessing performance of the operating segment of the company

2.2.18 Earnings Per Share

In determining basic earnings per share, the company considers the net profit attributable to equity
shareholders. The number of shares used in campu{ing basic eamings per share is the weighted

net profit attributable to equity shareholders and welghted average number of shares outstanding
ing the period are adjusted for the effect of all dilutive potential equity shares.
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2.2.19
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i
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Significant accounting estimates and judgments

The estimates used in the preparation of the said financial statements are continuously evaluated by
the Company and are based on historical experience and various other assumptions and factors
(including expectations of future events), that the Company believes to be reasonable under the
existing circumstances. The said estimates are based on the facts and events, that existed as at the
reporting date, or that occurred after that date but provide additional evidence about conditions
existing as at the reporting date. Although the Company regularly assesses these estimates, actual
results could differ materially from these estimates - even if the assumptions underlying such
estimates were reasonable when made, if these results differ from historical experience or other
assumptions do not turn out to be substantially accurate. The changes in estimates are recognized in
the financial statements in the period in which they become known.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing & material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. Actual results could differ
from these estimates.

a. Allowances for uncollected trade receivahbles

Trade receivables do not carry interest and are stated at their nominal values as reduced by
appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amount are based on ageing of the receivables
balances and historical experiences. Individual trade receivables are written off when management
deems not be collectible.

b. Contingencies

In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation and other claims
against the Company. There are certain obligations which managements have concluded based on
all available facts and circumstances are not probable of payment or difficult to quantify reliably
and such obligations are treated as contingent liabilities and disclosed in notes Although there can
be no assurance of the final outcome of legal proceedings in which the Company is involved, it is
not expected that such contingencies s will have material effect on its financial position of
probability.

¢. Impairment of financial assets

The impairment provision for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and
expected loss rates. The company uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the
inputs to the impairment calculation., based on the Company’s past history., existing market
conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

d. Taxes

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpreiation of complex tax regulations, changes in
tax laws, and the amount and timing of future taxable income. Given the nature of business
differences arising between the actual results and the assumptions made, or future changes to such
assumptions, could necessitate futurc adjustments to tax income and expense already recorded. The
Company establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates. The amount of such provisions is
based on various factors, such as experience of previous tax audits and differing interpretations of
tax regulations by the taxable entity and the responsible tax authority. Such differences of
mterprctatmn may arisc on a wide variety of issues depending on the conditions prevailing in the
"(_}“§$pectwc domicile of the companies.
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Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement
is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the
likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

e. Impairment of non financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use.
The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from binding sales
transactions, conducted at arm’s length, for similar assets or observable market prices less
incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use caleulation is based on a DCF model.

f.  Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options — Company as
lessee

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any
periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any
periods covered by an option to terminate the lease. if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.
=

The Company has lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Company
applies judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the
option fo renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an
economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After the commencement
date, the Company reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in
circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option
to renew or to terminate (e.g., construction of significant leasehold improvements or significant
customisation to the leased asset).

g. Revenue recognition

The Company recognizes revenue for a performance obligation satisfied over time afier reasonably
estimating its progress towards complete satisfaction of the performance obligation.

The recognition of revenue requires assessments and judgments to be made on changes in work
scope, claims (compensation, rebates ete. ) and other payments to the extent performance obligation
is satisfied and they arc probable and arc capable of being reasonably measured. For the purpose
of making estimates for claims, the company used the available contractual and historical
information.
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3 Property, Plant and Equipment

Particulars Computers Tuotal

As at 13th January 2021 = 5

Additions 0.4z 0.42
Disposals/Adjustments = =
Transfer to Asset held for sale 5 &
Exchange Gain/ Loss - £
As at 31st March 2023 0.42 0.42

As at 13th January 2022 - 2
Depreciation charge for the period 0.10] 0.10
Impairment - )
Disposals/Adjustments = o
Transter to Asset held for sale " 5
Exchange Gain/ Loss & Z

As at 31st March 2023 .10 .10

Net book value

As at st March 2023 0.32 0.32

MNede:
{i) Depreciation is provided based on useful life of assets which is in line with the uscful [ife prescribed in schedule 1T of the Companies Act, 2013 and
disctosed as under

Asset Class Liseful life adopted and as per
Schedule 11 {in vears)
Compater 36

(it} There 15 no cluss of assets where the Company uses different wsefial 1ifz than those preseribed in Schedule 11 of the Companies Act, 2013,
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6 Current Assets - Financial Assets

6.1

6.2

Current Financial Assets - Cash and Cash Equivalents

Particulars Asg at 31st March, 2023
Balances with banks:
Earmarked Funds
- On current accounts 5.02
- Deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months 39.80
Total 44,82
Current Assets - Other Financial Assets
Particulars As at 31st March, 2023
(Unsecured and considered good)
Security Deposit g
Contract Assets:
Contract Assets under SCA 5,205.63
Intt Receivable from holding company 93.53
Total 5,299.16

Current Tax Assets (Net)

Particulars

As at 31st March, 2023

Taxes Paid including TDS and Advance Tax (Net of provision for tax) 0.03

Total 0.03

Other Current Assets

Particulars As at 31st March, 2023

{Unsecured and considered good)

Advances Recoverable from

-Goods & Services Tax (GST) 027.62

Advances to contractors(Holding Co) 2.478.00

Prepaid Expenses 11.83
3,417.45
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Ircon Haridwar Bypass Limited

CIN:-U45200DL.2022G 01392406

Notes to financial statements for the period from 13th January 2022 to 31st March 2023
(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs unless atherwise stated)

19 Diselosure as per Ind AS 21 ‘The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates®

20

21

The amount of exchange differences (net) credited/debited to the statement of profit and loss is Nil.

Disclosure as per Ind AS 19 on Employee benefits

The employees in Ircon Haridwar Bypass Limited are posted on nomination/ secondment basis from Ircem International Limited {Holding
Campany).

In terms of accounting policy of the Company (Note No. 2.2.8) and arrangement with the Holding Company, the provision for Retireme
Benefits such as provident fund, pension, gratuity, post retirement medical benefits, Leaves and other terminal benefits of nominated emplayet
is being made by Holding company in terms of Ind AS-19. The amount paid or payable towards provident fund, pension, gratuity, pe:
retirement medical benefits, Leaves and other terminal benefits to the holding company are included in "Employee Benefit Expenses” (Nal
16).

Provident Fund Contribution of the emplayees on nomination/secondment have been regularly deposited by the holding company with its P.

Trust.

Related Party Disclosures
Disclosures in compliance with Ind AS 24 ‘Related Party Disclosures® are as under:

a)

List of Related Parties

(i) Holding company
lrcon International Limited
(i) Key Management Personnel (KMP)
Non Executive Directors
Name Designation
Shri Ashok Kumar Goyal {w.e.f. 13th January, 2022 tp 10th October, 2022) Director from Ircon
Shri Masood Ahmad (w.e.f. |3th January, 2022) Director from [rcon
Shri Mugunthan Baju Gowda (w.e.f, 13th January, 2022) Director from Ircon
Shri Devendra Kumar Sharma (w.e f. 10th October 2022) Director from Ircon
Remuneration 10 Key Management Personnel: Company had Part-time and Non Executive Directors during the financial year 2022-2
and 2021-22, nominated on the Board by the Holding Company, do not draw any remuneration from the Company. No sitting fee is pai
io Part- fime and Non Executive Directors.
b) Transactions with other related parties are as follows: {Rs. in Lakhs
For the period fron
Shibd 13th January 2022
Nature of transaction Name of related party ; : {Date of
relationship
incorporation) to
31st March 2023
1} Reimbursement expenses 6.2(
2) Rent Expense (inclusive of GST) 3.51
3} Investment in Equity Shares 5.00
4) Works Contract Ireon International ; 5,090.8:
; £ ) L i Holding Company )
3) Loan from holding company- Quasi Equity Limited B.216.9¢
) Moblization advance to Holding Co 2,478.00
7} Interest Income on mobilisation advance 103.92
¢} QOuistanding balances with the related parties are as follows: (Rs. in Lakhs
MNature of transaction Name of related party MNature of As at 31st March,
relationship 2023
Balance Payable a; on reporting date : i Yroon Tnteenational _ 327.21
Outstanding Moblization advance to Holding Co (Including Limited Holding Company 2.571.5:
Interest Receivable on advance)
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Ircon Haridwar Bypass Limited
CIN:-U45209DL2022G 01392406

Notes to financial statements for the period from 13th January 2022 to 31st March 2023
(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

d) Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

(i) Transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length (ransactions.

(ii) Bala_m:es payable of related parties at the reporting date are unsecured and settlement oceurs through banking transactions. These balanc:
are interest free except mobilization advance on which interest is charged at rate of average of one year MCLR of top 5 Schedule

commercial bank +1.25%
22 LEarnings per share (EPS)

Disclosure as per Ind AS 33 'Earnings per share'

(a) Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of equity share

outstanding during the period,

(b} Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the profit far the period atiributable to the equity holders afier considering the effect of dilution b
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would b

issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into equity shares.

(i) Basic and diluted earnings per share (in Rs.)

Parficulars Note For the period fron
13th Januwary 2022
{Date of
incorporation) to
J1st March 2023
Profit attributable to Equity holders (Rs. in lakhs) {ii) 77.06
No.of equitty shares 50,000.00
Weighted average number of equity shares for Basic and Diluted EPS (In Numbers) (iii) 50,000.00
Earnings per share (Basic) 154,12
Earnings per share {(Diluted) 154.12
Face value per share 10.00

(ii} Profit attributable to equity shareholders (used as numerator) (Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars

For the period from
13th January 2022
{(Date of
incorporition) to
31st March 2023

Profit for the vear as per Statement of Profit and Loss (Rs. in Lakhs)

Profit attributable to Equity holders of the company used for computing EPS (Rs, in Lakhs)

7706
77.06

(iii) Weighted average number of equity shares (used as denominator) (Nos.)

Particulars

For the period from
13th January 2022
(Date of
incorporation) to
31st March 2023

Opening balance of issued equity shares

Equity shares issued during the period

Weighted average number of equity shares for computing Basic EPS
Dilution Effect:

Weighted average number of equity shares for computing Diluted EPS

Add: Weighted average numbers of potential equity shares outstanding during the year

50,000.00
50,000.00

50,000.00

Note: Weighted average number of equity shares is the number of shares outstanding from the date of incorporation adjusted by th
number of equity shares issued during the period multiplied by the time weighting factor. The time weighting factor is the number o
dajfg_.f;ijr '_gi_éh,ﬂlg__spw:iﬁc shares are outstanding as proportion of total number of days during the period.
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Ireon Haridwar Bypass Limited

CIN--U4SZ09DL 202201392406

Notes to financial statements for the period from 13th January 2022 to 31st March 2023
(Al ameounts in Indian Rupess Lakbs unless otherwise stated |

13 Impairment of Assets
During the perind, Company has carvied out assessment on impairment of individual assets by working aut the recoverable amount based on lower of the net realizable vali
and oarrying cost in terms of Ind AS 36, “Impairment of Assets™ notified under section 133 of the companies Aet, 2013 read with Rule 3 of the Companies {Indian Accaunting
Standards ) Rules, 2015 and Companies {Indizn accounting standards) Amendment Rulas 2016 Accord ingly, mpairment loss of Nil has been provided for "

14 Provision, Contingencies and Commitments

fa)

{h}

(ch

(d)

Provisions

N provisions provided during the year as per Ind AS 37 'Provisions, Contingent Lizbilities and Contingent Assets'

Contingent linbilities

Mo Claims agains! the Company acknowledged ns debts &3 on the reparting date as per Ind A3 37 'Provisians, Contingent Liahilities and Contingant Asseis’,
Contingent assels

No claimes in faveur of the company accounted as receivables 8s on the reporting date as per Ind AS 37 'Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Cortingent Assets’

Commitments
Capital- Estimated amount of contracts remaining o be executed on capizl aecoum (Met of advanceyand not provided for is Nl
Other: Contractor EPC Work remianing fer execution on March 31,2023 Rs 73672 10 |akh

25 Segment Reporting

i)

(if)

(iii)

General Information

Operating segments are defined as componenis of an enterprise for which diserete financial information 5 availeble which is being evaluated regularly by the Chie
Operating Decision Maker (CODM) in deciding how to allocate resources and assessing performance. The Basrd of Directors of the Company is the Chief Oparating
Desision Maker (CODM). The Company is engaged in the business of infrastructure development in the state of Uttarakhand and the Chief Cperating Decision Mukse
{CODM) monitors the operating resulls of the business as a single segment, hence no separate segment needs (o be disclosed in sceordance with the requircments af Tre
AS 108

Information about geographical information

As the Company operates ina single geopraphical segment i e Tndia, henes no separate geographical seament {5 diselosed.

Information about major customer

For the poried ended March 3151, 2023, Revenue of Rs. 5205.63 Lakhs are derived from a single customer i.e. NHAI which is more than 10% of the Company™s tbia
TevEnue

26 Financial Risk Manggement
The Company's principal financial [abilities comprise rade payables and other payables. The mamn purpose of these financial labilities 15 ta fingnce the Company's operations
The Company’s principal finencial assets include receivables and cash and short-torm deposits. The Company is exposed to the following risks from s use of finencia
imstrumenls.
#) Cradit risk,
b Liguidity risk
) Market risk.
This note presents infermation about the Company’s exposure to each of the above risks, the Company®s ohjectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk,

Risk Management Framewark
The Company”s activilies make It susceptible to various Tisks. The Company hes teken adequate measures to address such concerns by developing adequate systems. an
proctices. The Board of Directors has overall responsibility fior the establishment and eversight of the Company’s risk management framework,

a)

Credit Risk

Credit risk 15 the risk of financie! loss to the Company if 8 cestomer or counterparty to g financial instrument fils to meet its contractual obligaions resulting in:
financial loss 1o the Company. Credit risk arises principally from wade receivables, cash and cash equivalents with banks and other financial assets. The Company'
exposure and credit ratings of its counterparties ere continpusly monitored by the management.

Cash and eash ¢quivalents

The cash and cash eguivalents are held in public sector banks with strong credil ratings.

Trade Receivables and other financial assets

The Company's expasure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the characteristics of the customer, The demographies of the customer, including the default nisk of the
industry and couniry in which the customer operates, also has an influence on credit nsk assessment. The Company derives revenue printarliy from the Construction o
Expressway and other fnancinl assets primarily relates 1o the unbilled revenue urder Service Concession Arrangement (SCA) The credit risk ansing from these trade
receivables and unbilled revenue is hmited because the counlerparty 15 National Highways Authority of [ndia (NHATL), an autonomous 2gency of Government of India
with capacity to meet the abligations and therefore, the risk of defult 15 very neglipible or Ml
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Ircon Haridwar Bypass Limited

CIN:-U45209DL2022CG 01392406

MNotes to financial statenients for the peciod from 13th January 2022 to 31st March 2023
(Al amounts in Indizan Rupees Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

(I} Exposure to eredif risk (R, In Lakhs)
Farticulars 31/Mar2
Financial Assets for which allowance is measured using life-time expected eredit loss as per simplificd approach
Orher Mon current Finaneial Assets 0.01
Cash and Cash Equivalents 44 87
Qher Current Financial Assets 5,299 16

{ii} Provision for expected credit losses
Mo mpairment loss has been recopnised during the reporting period.

(iii) Summary of loss allowance measured using simplified approach: - {Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars F1/Marfl.
Opening Allowances :
Prowided for the penad -
Mtilization for the period -
Amount written off
Closing Allowances Z

by Liguidity risk
Liguiclity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with ils financial liabifitics that are settled by debivering cash o
another financial asset The Company’s approach lo managing liquidity 15 to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity o meet its labilities when the:
wre due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unazceptable losses ar risking damage to the Company’s reputation. Liguidity position of th
Company |5 reviewed on a regular basis by the Board of Directors and appropriate decisions ere taken aveording fo the situation
The tahle belww provides details regarding the significant financial liabilities as at 31 March 2023 {Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars As al 3151 March, 2023

Less than | Year 1-2 Years 2 years and above
Trade Payables 35123 -
Other Financial Liabilities 6.58 o

€} Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates will affeet the Company’s mcome. The objective of market risl
managemant i5 to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the retumn. The Board of Directors is responsible for setiing
up of policies and procedures 10 manage market risks of the Company.

{iy Forcign Currency rish
The fumectional curreney of the Company is Indian Rupees. The Cornpany s not exposed o any forgign currency risk.

(i} Interest rate risk

Interest rate nisk 1s the nsk that the fair value or the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fuctuate because of changds in market interest rates: At the reporting
date the company 15 exposed 1o interest rate risk in respect of deposits with bank.

At the reporting date, interest rate profile of the Company's interest bearing financial instruments is as fiollows

Partivolars 31 /Mar23

Fixed rate Instrument -
Financial Asset 39.80
Financial Lizkilities .
Floating rate |astroment
Financial Asset

Financial Liabilities

19.80
27 Fair Value Measuremenis
4)  Financial instruments by colegory
Parliculars As at 315t March, 2023
FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised Cost
Financial Assels at Amortized Cost
(1) Other Mon current finangial assets - - {101
{ii} Cash and cash equivalents - - 44.82
(i) Olher eurrent financial asgets - - 5.29%.1¢8
- - 5,343.99
Financial Liabilities at Amortized Cost
{1} Trade Payablcs - - 351.23
(i) Cther fnuneial liabilities - - 658
- - 357.81
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CIN;-U45209DL2022GO1392406

Motes ta financial statements for the period from 13th January 2022 to 315t March 2023
(All amaunts in [ndian Rupees Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

b)

o

Fair value hicrarchy

Financial assets and financial lighilities are measured ar fair value in these finaneial statements and are grouped inta three levels of & fair valuc hierarchy, The thre
Levels are defined based on the nhservability of significant inputs to the measurement, as follows:

Level 1. Quoted prices (unad) usted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities,

Level 2: Inputs other than quoled prices meluded within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, sither directly or indirecthy.

Level 3 Unobserveble inputs for the asset or liability,

Carrying value and Fair value of Nnancial assets and linbilities as at 31st March 2023

Particulars Carryving Value Fair Value
Level-1 Lewel-2 Level-3
Financial Assers at Amortized Cost
(13 Other Non current financial asssts e Kv)] B - 0401
(i) Cash and cash equivalenls 44,82 - - 44 K2
(iii) Other currert financial assets 5,299 16 - - 5,299 1¢
5,343.99 - - 5,343.9¢
Financial Liabilities @t Amortized Cost
(i) Trade Payables 15123 - - 15123
(i1} Cther financial liabilitics £.58 5 - 6.5k
357.81 - - 357.81

The management asséssed that fair value of cash and cash equivelents, trade payables, and other eurrent financial assets / liabilities approximele their carrying amount
largely due to the shon-term maturitics of these instruments, The fair valus of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument coul
be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties.

28 Capital Management
The Company’s ohjectives whan managing capital ars to safeguard its ability to continue 25 a going concern and to optimise returns to shareholders. The capital structure of th
company is based on managenicnt’s judgement of its sirategic and day-to-day nesds with a foous on tolal equity 5o a9 to maintain investor. crediters and market con fidence. Tl
menggemant and the Board of Directors monitor the return on eapital. The Company may take appropriale steps in order 1o mainain, or if necessary adjust, its eapital structure.

29 Revenoe

Al

Disappregation of Revenue
Set out below is the disaggregation of the compeny's revenue from cantreets with customers into operating segment and type of product or services

Faor the perisd from 13th Janwary 2022 (Date of incorporation) to 31st March 2023
TJIN;:::::‘:H o Revenue as per Ind AS 115 Method for measuring performance obligation Other Revenue Total as per Statement
of Profit and Loss
Domestic | Foreign Total Input Method Outpnt Method
Highway 5.205.63 - 520563 5,205.63 - - 5.205.63
Total 5.205.63 - 5.205.63 5,205.63 - - 5,205.63

The revenue of Rs 5203 63 Lakhs 15 recogmscd over a périod of time.

Cantract balanees

Particulurs As at 31st March, 2023
Contract Asscts (Note 6.2) 520563
Contraet liablity L

Contract Assets are recognised over the period in which services are performed to represent the Company's right to eonsideration in exchange for goods or service
teansferred to the customer. It includes balances due from customers under construction centracts ther drise when the Company receives payments from customers as pe
lerms of the contracts bowever the revenue 15 recogmsed aver the period under input method, Aoy amounl previously recognesed as 8 contracl asset 15 reclassified i«
rade reesivables on satisfaction of the condiion ateched e, fluore service which is necessary 1o achieve the billing milestione

Movement in controct balances during the period

Particulars As at 31st March, 2023
Comtract asset al the Beginming of the period -

Contract assel at the end of the period 520563
Met inerease/{decrease) 5,205.63

For the period ended on 31.03.2023, there has been net increase of Rs. 5205.63 Lakhs due 1o recognition of revenue based on input method whareas bills for workdont
are ecrtified based on contract condition. There i5 no reclassification from unbilled revenue to twade receivibles during the perivd,

&/;
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Motes to financial statements for the period from 13th January 2022 to 315t March 2023
fAI amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs unless otherwiss siated)

30

)} Contract ligbilities relating to construction eontracts are balances due 1o customers, these arise when a particular milestone payment exceeds (ho revenue recogaised b
1o under the input method and sdvance received in long term construction contracts. The amount of Advance received gets adjusted over the constriuction period a
and when mvoicing 15 made to the custamer.

Particalars As ot 315t March, 2023

Contract liabilities at the Beginaing of the period
Conttract habilibies at the end of the period
Met increase/{ decrease) .

€. Set out below is the amount of revenue recopnised from:
Particulars

Ag at 31t March, 2023
Amaunt included in contract Habilitics at the beginning of the petiod -
Performance obligation satisfied in previous period .

0. Cost to obfain the confract
The Company has net incurred any incremental costs of obtaining contracts with a customer and (herefore, not recognised an asset for such casts.

E. Transaction price alloeated to the remaining performunce obligations
The transaction price for remaining performanes obligalions shall be received over the contract period in proportion of the work performed/services provided by U
Company.
Information ebout the Company®s performance obligations are summarised below:
The transaction price allecated to the remaining performance obligations (unsatisfied or partiolly unsatisfied) as at year end are, as follows:

Particulars As at 31.03.202:
Within one year 62,465 84
More than one year to 2 years 18.714.40
More than 2 years 2917

Toral 81,239.41

* The amount disclosed above does not includs variable consideration which is constrained,

Service Concession Arrangements

Public te private service concession arrangements are recorded in accordancs with Appendix "C"- Servies Concession Armangements (Ind AS-115). Appendix "C" is applicable
if:

a) The Grantor controls or regulates which services the operator should provide with the infrastructure, 19 whom it must pravide them, and at what price, and

b) The Grantor controls- through ownership, beneficial entitiement, or otherwise- any significant residual intérest in the infrastructure at the end of the term of the arrangement
If both of the above conditions are met simultansously, a financial asset 15 recognized to the extent that the operator has an uneonditicnal contracioal right to receive cash or
ather fingncal assel vom o al the diseretion of the Grantar for the service

Thes= Iinancial assets are initially recognized at cosl, which % understood as the far value of the service provided plus other direct cosis dirgethy attnibutable o the cperation
They are then stated st amortized cost at thie end of exch financial year.

Ireson Haridwar Byposs Limited (IrconHBL)Y has entered inlo service soncession arrangament with Mational Highway authority of [ndia (NHATL) dated Bth March 2022 i term:
af whick MHAT {the pranter) has authorised the eompany to carry the business of upgradetion & construction of four laning of Hondwar Bypass Packege-T from Km. 4000
{Km IER+100 of MH-38) to Km. 153+100 { Km 5+100 of NH-74) in the stste of Uttarakhand on Hybnd Annuity Mode. In terms of the said agreemen! IroonHBL has w
ablipation to complele construction of the praject of four laning of Haridwar Bypass section and to keep tha projest assets in proper working condition including ¢/l project:
assels whose lives have expired. The Propect |5 under Annuity pattern.

The Concession period shall be 13 years commencing from the Commercial ocperation date, At the end of the concession peried, the assats will be transferred back w Nationa
Highweay Autharity of India (NHAT)

In cese of material breach in terms of egreement the NHAL and IrconHBL have nght to terminaie the agreement 17 they are not eble to cure the event of default in accordance
with such agreement

Company has recognized financiel asset of Rs 520563 Lakhs under service concession agreement upto the period ended 3151 March 2023 affer 1aking inio account
receivables due from MHAIL on completion of milestone as per terms of the contract. The company has reeognised revenue of Rs 5205 63 Lokhs for the period ended on 3¢
March 2023 on construct:on of Road under SCA and Operabion Revenue as per Ind AS - 115 related to "Revenue from Customers" The company has recognized receivable
under service concesston arrangement and shown under Cther Financial current Assets which it will receive as per terms of the contract based on the complelion of milesion:
s on 315t March 2023
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Ircon Haridwar Bypass Limited
ClIMN-U4S209DL2022G 01392406
Motes to financial statements for the period from 13th January 2022 to 315t March 2023

{All amounts.

in Indizn Rupees Lakhs unless otherwise sinted)

Disclosure in terms of Appendix D of Ind AS 115
In terms of the disclosure required in Appendix D in Ind AS -115 Revenue from Customers, as notified in the companies (Indian Accounting Standard) rules 2016, the amour
eonsidered m the finansial statements up to the balance sheet dale arce a5 follows:-

Particulars
Fuor the period from 1310
Januvary 2012 (Date of
incorpuration) tn 315t
March 2023
Contract Revenue Recopnized 52056
Apgregate amount of cost incurred 520356,
Amouni of advance received from Client
Amount of retention by Client
Profit| Loss| recogmised during ihe peniod for exchange of consiruction senvice for a financisl asset
Giross amognt dug froem Client for Conract Works 5205.6,

31 Leases

u)

Company as a Lessee

{i) The Company has no leasing armangement which are non-cancellable in nature, Accordingly, no right of use assets and lease lishilities have been recognised by th

Carmpany.

(i} The Company has taken Office on leage with lease terms of 12 months or less. The Company spplies the ‘shori-term lease’ recagnition exemptions for such leases

The following are the amounis recognised in Statement of profil and loss

Particulars

For the period from 13t
Janwary 2022 (Date of
Imcarparation) to 31st

Murch 2023

Expense :el:lling to short-tenm leases (Refer Mote 18)

151

b)

Company as a Lessor
Company hag no legsing arrengement &5 & lessor.

3X Details of delaved pavments to Micro and Small Enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006

S5.MNo

Particulars

Asat 3]st March, 2023

a)

b

c)

d}
o)

The principe! amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid ta-any supplier as at the end of each accaunting year:
- Prineapal amount due ta miero and small enterprises

- Interest due on above
The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Section 16 of the MSMED Act 2008 along with the amounts of the payment made to

the supplier beyond the appointed day dunng cach accounting year

The amiunt of mterest due and payable {or the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyand the appointed day
during the year) but withawt adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act 2006

The amount of interest acerued and remaming unpaid at the end of each accounting year

The emaunt of further intergst remaining due and payable even in the susceeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are
actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under Section 23 of the MSMED: Act 2006

59



Irean Haridwar Bypass Limited

CliMNe-U45209DL202 2GO1392906

Motes Lo linancial statements for the period from 13th Jeonary 2022 to 315t Maorch 2023
{All amounts in Indian Rupess Lakhs unless otherwiss siaed)

33 Corporate Social Responsibility
The Company is not covered under section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and no CSR cxpenditure has been incurred duri ng the period.

34

35

Diselosure pursuant to section 186 of the Companies Act 2013:
There sre ne loans given, myestments made and guarantee given by the Company during the period

Other Statutory Disclosures
The MCA vide notification dated 24th March 2021 has amended Schedule Il lo the Companies Acl. 2013 in respeet of certain disclosures which are applicable from Ist Apr

2021,

i
{i1)
(m}

(1w}

(%)
(wi)
(vit)
{viti)
(1=}

{x)

{xr)

(1)
fFxciii]

(xiv)

{xv)
[ELTN]

The Company has mearparated the changes as per the said amendment in the financial statements ead below disclosures are made in compliance of the said gmendment

The company does not have Immovable properties hence the guestion oftitle deeds in the name of eompany does not arisc.

The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment during the year.

The Company does nol have any Capital Work- in- Progress, Investmenr Property, Intangible Assets and Intangible Assets under Development as at 315t March, 202
and 315t March, 2022 During the year 2022-23 and 2021-22, the company has not revalued any of ils Property, plant and equipment,

Tha Compary has no transactions with companies struck off under section 248 oFthe Companies Act, 2013 or Section 560 of Campanics Act, 1956 during the period

The Company has not traded or invested in erypto currency or virual currency during the pernod
The Compnzy do net have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the company for holding any Benami property.

The Company do not hive any prier perind ermors to be disclosed scparately in statement of changes in equity:

The Company do not have any charges ar satisfaction of charges which is yet to be registered with ROC beyand the statutory period

The Company has not advanced or loaned o invested funds 1o any other persan(s) or cntity(ies), including Tforeign entitics (Intermediaries) with {he understunding the
the Intermediary shall:

{a) dircctly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified m any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company {Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

{b) provide any guarantee, seeutity or the like to or on behalfof the Ultimate Bensficiories
The Company has nol received any fund [rom any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded i
writing or etherwise) that the Company shall:

{a) direcily or indwectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whaseever by or on hehalf of the Funding Party {Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

I} provide any guarantes, security or the ke on bohalf of the Ultimate Benoficiaries

The Company dozs not have any loans and advances in the nuture of Joans 1o pramoters, directars, KMP and other related parties except the maobilization advance of Rs
2478.00 laks

The Company has not been declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.

The Company dogs not have arty transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been subsequently surrendered or disclosed as income during th
year as part of the ongeing (ax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any ather refevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1951,

Tho Company has not made any investment therefore complianee of namber of layers preseribed under olause B7 of section 2 of the Act read with companies {restriction
on number of bayers) rules, 2017 |5 not applicable

The Campany has not entered into any scheme(s) of @rrangoments during the finzncial vear,

The Company does nol have any transactions where the company has not wsed the bomowings from banks and financial institutions for the specific purpose for which |
was 1aken al the balance sheel dale.

(=vii) Company is not required 10 submit statement of current asseis with the banks or financial institutions and therefore reconciliation of the statement filed by the compan;

with banks or financial instilutions and the hooks of account is not applicable.
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Notes ta financial statements for the peviod from [3th Junwiry 2022 o 3151 March 2023
LA mounts in Indion Rupees Lakhs unless otherwiss gaed)

(5viil) The Mllowing seeomsting mlios are disclosed: -

S.Mo |Partieulnrs Numermtur Deniminator Melurch 31, 2023 “a clulnge Reason for chinge moic
fhan 15%
ay  (Curren ratip Current Aascls Civen! Linknlifies | 5.03 MA® WA
b1 | Debt=eguiny mtia Tatnl Db Shareholde’s Cquity 0.00 N.A* NAY
ch | Dol service coverage mtio Enmings for debe servige = Debe service = [nlerest 0.06 MoAs MAY
Poen peofin afier teces + Moo & Lenss Poyments +
cash apierating exponses | Prineipal Repsymen|s
dy [ Retrn on egquity mtis Moot Profis after taves = | Avernpe Sharebolder s .01 WA N.A®
Prafisrencls Ddvidend Equity
&) | lwveniory furover’ mtio Cost of poods sald Avarje Inventory 0.00 WA N.A*
N [Federsoevables mmover mia Meveredil sales= Gross Averape Trade 000 Noas N.A*
crudiz splos- wles emm Reeeivable
el | Temle piyable tmmover miio Nat eradin pyrchases = Avcrage Trade 14,53 NoA N.A®
Griss eredil purchases « Payables
purchnse ream
hy et capital mmaover miin et Sales = Total sales- Working cipital = 063 MoA* MLA*
sales return Cuwrment nssets —
Cument labilitics
i) [Mel prafl cas Nel Profil Mot Sules = Todal sabes- .01 WA N.A*
anles getin
31 |Ratim en eapitnl employed Enmngs before interes) | Cipital Employed = a1 A NoA®
nidl. e Tanpilile fet Wortly +
Tonal Delnt + Deferred
Tex inallizy
kY [ Rstum on lvestown Ingomse generaed from Imvessment 0.00 MA® N A
Imvestiends | Financs
Income)

= oAs phe ffmminciol stutementy are prepared for tha fest dg, the percoit el fn the ratle & renson for chasge docs s apply,

36 Covid <19 Disclosare
The Company hos considerad e possible elfects that miy vesid freme Covid-17 o he prdpaagion ol 118 Tiancial reaalts inclding the recoverabiling of gy smonnis of
finnneiel and non-finaneinl asscts. In developig the assumpiions relatmg. o the possible Telure uncertaintics i the ol ceomontds condiiians Becamse of Covid-19, the
Coamgminy bas twseed bl ind extenind Sounces of [nfomintion and expects thal the canying amoint of the assels will be recorared
The actual Hinpact of this global health pasdemic nny be different from that which hos been estimated, 08 the Cavid= 11 sitiation evalves i lidia and globally. However, the
Comparny will contimee fo-losety moniton ay moterial clanges (o fifure econmmiy conditions

37 Wecent promouncement

Minigiry of Copporine Alfams (*MOA" b uotifies new sadards or smendments o the esisting stmdands inder Companics ¢ ndinm Accounting Standnrds) Rules as issued from
£ e b R o0 Miweh 31,2023, MOA amevded ihe Compani es { Indiai .A.t‘cmlhltllp_slmlﬂnfd 51 Asendment Bules 2023 ps below?

Il AST- Feeseniation ol Fiancial Siatemens - Tlis amendment requires the gatities fo disciose thelr materid siceounting policies mithier than thair sigiifican accomating
palicies. The effective dote for adominn of this amendime) i i st peciods begiming on or after Apnl |, 2023, The Compay bas evalited e smendment ik e impact
af e mnendment is insignificant in the Tl salemens

Inel A% 8- Accounting Molicies, Changes in Accounting Estinvales and Ervor - This mmendment bas inireduced o definiton of *accannting estimaies’ and included amendments
to lind AS E fo help entities distingu th ehanges i aceonting pelicies from changes i accomtmg estimates, The effective date for adoption o s amendmen i puel periods
beginning an or afies Aprl (20235 The Compamy has evalunted the amendment and there is oo opact o its fnaseial sldements

Ind AS 12 - lvcome Takes = This smendn el las nacrowed the scope of the il recognition exemption so that &s does nol apply o imosperons al give rise o egual and
aifictting temporary. diffcnences, e effechve date for adeption of this arendment is. nwwml periods begimnang on or alier Apel |, 2023 The Compiury has evalugtel the
sanend ment and [here is no impact on 1S feancial starement

AR Oiher disclossires
(i) The lreon Hisridwin' bypass hniied was incorpoeated on 130 Jamwary 2022 a5 a wholty cwned: subsidiany of Treon Indemiional Limied, This s the first fimaneil
sttement for the penod from F3th Innmace 2022 ta 318t Narch 2023 pod henee, comesponding figares of the previous ¥oor me nol peovided
(i) TheSaie Bank af India { 531) hag sancrioned tie term boan of Bs 447 61 coore however conpany (105 oo availed loan s at 31,03,2023
(liry 1he Company has o system of obtaming periodic conlimntion oF blarces from bonks and other parmes
tivk In the opindon of the maningement, the walie-of assels on reilisalion in the ardinary course of business, will nol be less than Uie value ot whiel these are stated in the
Balanee Shoot

(%) Figneres rownded of v the nearest nupees in Lakh

As per onr report of even date Far and ow behndl of the Baord of Divcetors
rqr Ravi Rawnesh & Assnciatos Treon Haridwar Bypass Limilgd

DBuregtor
(DHM:
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER
SECTION 143(6) (b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013, ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF IRCON HARIDWAR BYPASS LIMITED FOR THE PERIOD FROM 13
JANUARY 2022 TO 31 MARCH 2023

The preparation of financial statements of Ircon Haridwar Bypass Limited for the period
from 13 January 2022 to 31 March 2023 in accordance with the financial reporting
framework prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013, is the responsibility of the
management of the Company. The Statutory Auditor appointed by the Comptroller and
Auditor General of India under Section 139 (7) of the Act is responsible for expressing
opinion on the financial statements under Section 143 of the Act, based on independent
audit in accordance with the standards on auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the
Act. This is stated to have been done by them vide their Audit Report dated 12 May 2023.

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have decided not to
conduct supplementary audit of the financial statements of Ircon Haridwar Bypass Limited
for the period from 13 January 2022 to 31 March 2023 under Section 143 (6)(a) of the Act.

For and on the behalf of the
Comptroller & Auditor Genera! of India

Place: New Delhi Dr. Nilotpal Goswami
Dated:742.07.2023 Director General of Audit
Railway Commercial, New Delhi
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